
Eventually, Halifax’s Supervised Playgrounds were incorporated and the 

provisions of public playgrounds became accepted municipal responsibility. 

Across the western world, Supervised Playgrounds were the basis of the 

modern municipal. “parks and recreation department” as well as the 

“summer day camps” also offered by most municipalities. 

The Bloomfield Supervised Playground is an important piece of our local 

history belonging to a much broader international movement that helped 

shaped the modern world. However, there are currently no plans to save this 

valuable piece of our local history when the Bloomfield Centre is redevel-

oped. Contact Halifax city council to help save Historic Bloomfield Park! 

Historic Bloomfield Park 
Halifax’s First Public Playground 

 
To Learn more visit Facebook: @bloomfieldurbancommon   

Email: bloomfieldurbancommon@hotmail.com 

 

“In grateful appreciation of the Local Council of Women, Halifax who began the playground 

movement in  Halifax, July 13 1906, on this spot.” [plaque lain May 27, 1986]. 



A History of Halifax’s Supervised Playgrounds 

Recreational Land Use: Perspectives on Its Evolution in Canada. Geoffrey Wall, John S. Marsh, 

Pg. 280,” Accessed via Google Books.  

This article references the installation of the arc-light at the Bloomfield 

Playground. Another article references the contribution of the St. Pat-

rick’s baseball team who helped coach the children in the 1909 season. 



A community “little league” began to play baseball out of the playgrounds 

beginning sometime around 1907. By 1910, the league consisted of a be-

ginners, intermediate, and advanced division with teams playing out of 

each of the playgrounds. The games were very popular and followed by the 

community. Being the first public playgrounds in Halifax, this likely repre-

sents the first organized community baseball in the city as well. An arc-

light was installed at the Bloomfield Supervised Playground in 1910 to al-

low the baseball teams to play later into the evening.  

The Bloomfield Supervised Play-

ground was the first of three super-

vised playgrounds opened in Halifax 

in the summer of 1906 that included 

the Grafton Street Playground at St. 

Mary’s and the Albro Street Play-

ground. Supervised Playgrounds were 

also established at Young Street, Jo-

seph Howe School in 1909, and Mul-

grave Park in 1910. Members of the 

council were concerned that in an in-

creasingly industrialized and urban 

city, there were limited opportunities 

for children to play outside in a safe 

and clean environment. Moreover, 

many parents could not afford ade-

quate daycare during the summer 

when their children were not in 

school. The answer was the interna-

tional Supervised Playground Move-

ment. Parents could leave their chil-

dren under the supervision of spe-

cially trained teachers where there 

would be playground equipment, 

games, arts and crafts, and organized 

sports. Also known as “vacation 

schools”, the playgrounds were open 

during the evenings to older children 

and the men and women who worked 

in nearby factories. The “open air 

concerts” referred to in this article 

drew 1000s of attendants as men-

tioned on the previous page. 
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The fundraising activities enjoyed a broad base of support. The Eastern 

Canada Savings and Loan Company administered the collection of the 

funds. The editors of Halifax’s newspapers gave strong voice to the fund-

raising efforts, as did members of the clergy who spoke in support of them. 

The Mayor personally provided a large portion of the funding for the Play-

grounds in one year during WWI, and the Lt. Governor of Nova Scotia was 

an early supporter who presided over the closing ceremonies and awarded 

prizes to the children who participated it various activities that day. 



In a time of increasing industrialization and urbanization, the Halifax Local 

Council of Women were concerned about the effect this would have on chil-

dren who did not have safe and healthy places to play. The playgrounds 

were seen as a public health measure of which a key component was the 

“mental health” of those who used them, although this would have been re-

ferred to as “spiritual” or “moral” health back it the early 1900s. 

The Supervised Playgrounds were privately funded through public fundrais-

ing activities. The Halifax Local Council of Women paid to install slides, 

swings, see-saws, sand boxes, and also offer games like bag tosses and teth-

erball, arts and crafts, and organized excursions and day-trips. June 1906. 



Halifax’s Supervised Playgrounds were part of the international Play-

ground Movement which saw supervised playgrounds opened in cities like 

Phiadelphia, Boston, New York, London, and Manchester as early as 1885. 

Fundraising for the Playgrounds was achieved, in part, through the selling 

of “tags”. These tags would be analogous to the modern button-pin and 

would be worn as both a source of pride and notification that a person had 

already contributed to the fundraising effort. Organized groups of children 

led by adults would spread out across the city, and could raise over $1000.  

 

July 11, 1909. 

This article describes the tags that were sold by the children. It is possible 

that some of these survive to this day either in the Halifax city archives, the 

Halifax Regional School Board’s archives, the Local Council of Women’s 

archive, or possibly in private homes by the descendants of their purchas-

ers. Other historical items from the Supervised Playgrounds that I would 

like to try and recover include the clay models and paper flowers produced 

by the children and put on display at the Nova Scotia Exhibition Hall. The 

children also made dolls that were put on display at the Exhibition Hall and 

then afterwards donated to the children at the Children’s Hospital. As well, 

there are the concert programs from the first season and the baseball uni-

forms worn by the children playing in the community baseball leagues that 

began to play out of the playgrounds starting around 1908. There are likely 

many more newspaper articles on the playgrounds, as well as the baseball 

leagues which played out of them, in the provincial archives. The articles 

in this pamphlet are drawn from the “Women’s Council Archive” which is 

a small sample of the total number of articles that must exist.  


